
1 
 

 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
June 3, 2013 

7:00 P.M. – Regular Meeting 
Municipal Meeting Room 

Brunswick Station 
16 Station Avenue 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Roll Call  
 
Public Comment:  
 
Correspondence:   
 
Adjustments to the Agenda:  
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Council Committee Updates 
 
(b) Permission to create the Alex Labbe Fund (Action required) 
 
(c) Report on the opening of the Dog Park 
 
(d) Police Station Update 
 
(e) Transition planning for Parks and Recreation  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
60. The Town Council will hear public comments on the following Special Amusement 

License, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 
 
Special Amusement 

MCM Corp 
D/B/A: Hacienda Pancho Villa Mexican Restaurant Fernando Saldana 
164 Pleasant Street 
 

Maine & Noble LLC 
D/B/A: Inn at Brunswick Station J. Hilary Rockett 
4 Noble Street 
 

HEARING/ACTION 



2 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
61. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for June 17, 2013, on changes to 

the Zoning Ordinance relative to the Village Review Zone, and will take any appropriate 
action. (Manager) 

ACTION 
 

62. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for June 17, 2013, regarding the 
proposed Recreation, Trails, and Open Space Management Plan, and will take any 
appropriate action. (Councilor Pols) 

ACTION 
 
63. The Town Council will consider a request for Sellers of Prepared Food on Public Ways 

for outdoor seating, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager)  
 
  Shere Punjab, 46 Maine Street 
  Little Saigon Restaurant, 44 Maine Street 

ACTION 
 
64. The Town Council will consider appointments to the Town’s Boards and Committees, 

and will take any appropriate action. (Appointments Committee) 
ACTION 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

(a) Approval of the Minutes of May 20, 2013 
(b) Approval of the Minutes of May 23, 2013 

 
INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 

COMMUNICATION SHOULD CONTACT  
THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 (TDD 725-5521) 



3 
 

 
Brunswick Town Council 

Agenda  
June 3, 2013 

Council Notes and Suggested Motions 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
(a) Council Committee Updates:   Councilors with information on the Committees they are 

involved with will share information with the Council and public. 
 

Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 
 
(b) Permission to create the Alex Labbe Fund (Action required):  This item establishes the 

Alex Labbe Fund, which benefits deserving children who may not financially be able to 
attend the Town’s Summer Vacation Camp program.  Tom Farrell and members of the 
Labbe family will be at your meeting.  Copies of a memo from Tom Farrell and draft 
resolution are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion to adopt a “Resolution Establishing The Alex Labbe Fund.” 

 
(c) Report on the opening of the Dog Park:  This item is to announce the opening of the 

Brunswick Area Recreation for Kanines Park on Saturday, June 8, 2013.  Members of the 
BARK will be at your meeting.  Copies of the press release and pre-opening information 
are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 

 
(d) Police Station Update:  This is the monthly update on this project.  
 

Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 
 
(e) Transition planning for Parks and Recreation:  The Town Manager will be directing the 

Parks and Recreation Department, with participation by the Recreation Commission, to 
develop a plan for the transition of the Department to Building 211 and the transition of 
programming as a result of the sale of the property at 30 Federal Street.  A memo from 
the Manager is included in your packet.  

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 

 
  



4 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
60. This item is the required public hearing for two renewal special amusement licenses. 

Hacienda Pancho Villa Mexican Restaurant and The Inn at Brunswick Station both would 
like to have D.J.s and live music.  Copies of their applications are included in your 
packet. 
 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion to approve special amusement licenses for Hacienda Pancho Villa Mexican 
Restaurant, 164 Pleasant Street, and Inn at Brunswick Station, 4 Noble Street. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
61. This item returns to the Council from the Planning Board for your consideration.  At your 

October 1, 2012 meeting, the Town Council requested the Brunswick Planning Board to 
prepare an amendment to Section 216 of the Town’s Zoning Ordinance with regard to the 
review and approval of demolitions.  An interim approach was presented to Council by 
Planning Board Chair, Charlie Frizzle, to give Planning Board the authority to approve 
Certificates of Appropriateness for demolitions with advice provided by the Village 
Review Board for such demolition.  This approach was suggested so that a 
comprehensive amendment to Section 216, addressing all deficiencies, could be drafted.  
On December 17, 2012, the Town Council voted 8-1 to adopt the interim amendment as 
previously described, with said amendment being in effect until June 1, 2013, at which 
time either a more comprehensive amendment to Section 216 would be recommended by 
the Planning Board or Section 216 would revert back to existing text.  By unanimous vote 
on May 21, 2013, the Planning Board recommends the attached amendment to Section 
216 of the Brunswick Zoning Ordinance and an expansion to the geographic boundaries 
of the Village Review Zone for Council’s consideration.  Copies of Ms. Breinich’s memo 
and the proposed amendments are included in your packet.  

 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion to set a public hearing for June 17, 2013, on changes to the Zoning Ordinance 
relative to the Village Review Zone. 

 
62. This item, sponsored by Councilor Pols, is to set a public hearing for June 17, 2013, 

regarding the proposed Recreation, Trails, and Open Space Management Plan for Public 
Benefit Conveyances from the BNAS property.  For the past two years, the stakeholders 
committee has been meeting to develop this plan.  The process included public meetings 
to allow for input.  Copies of a memo from Denise Clavette and the Plan’s Executive 
Summary are included in your packet.  The full plan will be emailed to you and will be 
available on-line.  At the June 17th meeting, the full plan will be included in your packet 
as you will be asked to approve it. 

  



5 
 

 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion to set a public hearing for June 17, 2013, regarding the proposed Recreation, 
Trails, and Open Space Management Plan for Public Benefit Conveyances from BNAS 
property. 

 
63. This item is the approval of Sellers of Prepared Food on Public Ways on Sidewalks for 

two applications for Shere Punjab and Little Saigon Restaurant.  There is no license fee 
except for a $25 application fee, but it does require Council approval.  The Clerk will be 
available to answer any questions.  Copies of the applications are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to approve licenses for Sellers of Prepared Food on Public Ways on a Sidewalk 
for the Shere Punjab, 46 Maine Street and Little Saigon Restaurant, 44 Maine Street. 

 
64. At this time the Appointments Committee will make nominations to fill vacancies on 

Town Boards and Committees.  Copies of the applications are included in your packet. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
Nominations will be made, with no seconds required, and the Council will then vote on 
the nominations. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

(a) Approval of the Minutes of May 20, 2013:  A copy of the minutes is included in your 
packet. 

(b) Approval of the Minutes of May 23, 2013: A copy of the minutes is included in your 
packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - A 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 









 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 







 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT - D 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 
TOWN MANAGERS OFFICE 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
TO:  Brunswick Council    
 
FROM: Gary Brown, Town Manager 
  
DATE:  May 29, 2013   
  
RE: Transition of Recreation Center          
 
In response to pending relocation of the Parks and Recreation Department to Building 
211, I am proposing to direct the Parks and Recreation Department, working with the 
Recreation Commission to plan for the transition of programs. 
 
The plan should include public meetings to allow interested parties to participate in the 
discussions. We will identify available dates for the meetings to take place in Council 
Chambers so that the meetings may also be televised. 
 
The plan should address the following issues: 
 

1. The impact of selling 30 Federal Street and putting building 211 into service will 
result in changes to where activities will occur. The plan will identify where 
programs will take place. (Examples: basketball programs previously held at 30 
Federal St will be relocated to the Coffin School.) 
 

2. The plan will identify the transition of special events (Halloween parade, Ski & 
Bike sale, other). 
 

3. The plan will also address the relocation of the pre-school program. 
 

4. Other issues that may be related to the transition and arise during the 
discussions with the public. 



 
 

 
ITEM 60  
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 













 
 

 
ITEM 61 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



 
May 24, 2013 
 
To:  Brunswick Town Council 
  Gary Brown, Town Manager 
From:  Anna Breinich, AICP 
Subject: Request for public hearing:  Proposed Zoning Ordinance amendment to revise in its 

entirety Section 216, Village Review Zone (VRZ) Overlay District and to expand the 
geographic boundaries of the Village Review Zone  

  
At your October 1, 2012 meeting, the Town Council requested the Brunswick Planning Board to prepare 
an amendment to Section 216 of the Town’s Zoning Ordinance with regard to the review and approval of 
demolitions.  An interim approach was presented to Council by Planning Board Chair, Charlie Frizzle, to 
give Planning Board the authority to approve Certificates of Appropriateness for demolitions with advice 
provided by the Village Review Board for such demolition.  This approach was suggested so that a 
comprehensive amendment to Section 216, addressing all deficiencies, could be drafted.  On December 
17, 2012, the Town Council voted 8-1 to adopt the interim amendment as previously described, said 
amendment being in effect until June 1, 2013 at which time either a more comprehensive amendment to 
Section 216 would be recommended by the Planning Board or Section 216 would revert back to exist its 
text.   
 
By unanimous vote on May 21, 2013, the Planning Board recommends the attached amendment to 
Section 216 of the Brunswick Zoning Ordinance and an expansion to the geographic boundaries of the 
Village Review Zone for Council’s consideration.   
 
Since January, the Planning Board and Village Review Board have held 6 joint workshops to develop the 
proposed amendment, representing a total rewrite of Section 216.  As had been mentioned previously, 
many prior amendments to Section 216 left a number of internal inconsistencies in substance and 
formatting.  As drafted, the new section is easier to use, eliminates inconsistencies and provides for a 
better level of predictability for an applicant.   
 
Key revisions to address concerns previously raised by the Town Council are as follows: 

 Establishment of a classification-based review system for contributing and noncontributing 
resources;  

 Distinguishing between Minor (staff approval) and Major (staff review with Village Review 
Board approval) activities with a defined review process for each; 

 More specific review standards for all activities to serve as a basis for findings of fact; and 
 Definitions of key terms establishing their meaning within Section 216. 

Staff respectfully requests the Town Council to set a public hearing to receive comment and consider the 
attached proposed amendment to Section 216 of the Brunswick Zoning Ordinance. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 

 

INCORPORATED 1739 
 

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
28 FEDERAL STREET 
BRUNSWICK, ME  04011 

 

 

 

ANNA M. BREINICH, AICP PHONE: 207-725-6660 
DIRECTOR OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT FAX: 207-725-6663 



As mentioned, the Planning Board also took action to recommend an expansion (map attached) of the 
Village Review Zone as recommended in Chapter 7, Land Use Plan, of the Town’s 2008 Comprehensive 
Plan Update, extended the Zone on the west side of Maine Street to Page Street on the south and Union 
Street to the west.  During the public hearing a comment was raised regarding the geography as written in 
the Comprehensive Plan Land Use Plan and a conflicting action item listed in Policy 7, Key Objective #4 
stating the expansion should include an area west of Maine Street to Union Street, possibly including 
Cedar Street, from the Androscoggin River to the north, to the Joshua L. Chamberlain Museum to the 
south.  The Museum is located on the northeast corner of Maine and Potter Streets.  Additional comments 
regarding the proposed area were made since the Planning Board Public Hearing prompting staff to 
review the specific motions by Council during the 9/15/08 adoption of the Comprehensive Plan.  A 
motion was approved to expand the Village Review Zone from what had been proposed in Final Draft 
Comprehensive Plan (Noble Street to the south), to now include the Chamberlain Museum.  As such, 
Potter Street should have been referenced in the Land Use Plan, not Page Street as currently shown.   
 
Town Council has three options as to what, if any, southerly expansion of the Village Review Zone 
should be considered at this time for public hearing: 
 1. Planning Board recommended expansion to Page Street based on written text in Chapter  
  7 in the Town’s 2008 Comprehensive Plan; 

2. Expansion to Chamberlain Museum, subsequently Potter Street, per approved motion 
made as part of the 9/15/08 adoption of the 2008 Comprehensive Plan Update; or 

3. Allow for a more careful analysis for any expansion as part of the Zoning Ordinance 
rewrite scheduled to begin to a few months.   

 
Staff recommends option #3 for Council’s consideration due to the noted discrepancies and 
recommendations for further consideration of the Cedar Street area contained in the Comprehensive Plan.  
In addition, the necessary classification of local and regionally contributing resources work to be 
completed by an historic architect should provide additional data in reviewing the Village Review Zone 
boundary.  We anticipate contracting with a consultant to complete this work by mid-June.   
I will be in attendance at your meeting to answer any questions. 
 
 
 
Attachments 
 



77 
 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO BRUNSWICK ZONING ORDINANCE 
AS RECOMMENDED BY THE BRUNSWICK PLANNING BOARD, MAY 21, 2013 

Section 216, Village Review Zone (VRZ) Overlay District, in its entirety 
 
 
  216 Village Review Zone (VRZ) 
 
 216.1 Purpose 
 

 The purpose of the Village Review Zone is to protect and preserve the architectural context 
and historical integrity of downtown neighborhoods in the Town of Brunswick by:   

 
A. Applying Ordinance standards and design guidelines in a reasonable and flexible 

manner to maintain Brunswick's traditional character and to ensure compatible 
construction and rehabilitation of existing structures in the Village Review Zone 
without stifling change or forcing modern recreations of historic styles. 
 

B. Developing administrative processes and objective standards that identify and 
encourage the preservation and enhancement of neighborhood character, sites, and 
structures having historic or architectural significance. 

 
C. Promoting economic development by enhancing the attractiveness of the Town to 

businesses and their patrons, residents, and visitors to Brunswick. 
 

D. Fostering civic pride in the Town's history and development patterns as represented 
in distinctive sites, structures, and objects.  

 
E. Promoting and protecting significant features of the historic patterns of development, 

including traditional landscaping, densities, structural mass and scale.  
 
   

216.2 Duties of the Village Review Board 
 

  The duties of the Village Review Board are to: 
 

A. Review new construction, additions, alterations, relocations and demolitions within 
the Village Review Zone, and issue a Certificate of Appropriateness for applications 
satisfying the requirements of this Section. 
 

B. Develop, regularly update, and consult the Village Review Zone Design Guidelines 
in review of applications for Certificates of Appropriateness.  
 

  C. Act in an advisory capacity to the Town Council, Planning Board and other Town 
entities regarding the protection of historic sites, structures, and artifacts. 

 
  D. Review and comment upon proposed National Register of Historic Places 

nominations for properties within the Town.   
 
  E. Maintain and update the existing historic building/structure survey using forms and 

guidelines established by the Maine Historic Preservation Commission. 
   

F. Provide educational and informational opportunities for Brunswick residents and 
businesses regarding historic preservation. 

 



78 
 

 
    

216.3 Village Review Board Membership 
  

A. The Village Review Board shall consist of seven members. 
 

B. The membership of the Village Review Board shall include a resident of the Village 
Review Zone and a Brunswick resident who is a representative of the Pejepscot 
Historical Society.  To the extent possible, the remaining members shall include 
Brunswick residents with expertise or experience in the fields of architecture, 
historic preservation and construction engineering. 

 
C. All members shall be appointed by the Town Council for a three-year term. 

 
D. Annually, on or about February 22, the Village Review Board shall choose a Chair 

and Vice-Chair from its membership. 
 

E. A quorum shall consist of four members.   
 

F. The Village Review Board may adopt its own rules of procedure and shall establish 
appropriate meeting times. 

 
216.4    Classifications 

 
A. Contributing resources as listed in Appendix ____, as amended, shall include: 

 
1. Properties listed on the National Register of Historic Places. 
2. Properties eligible for listing on the National Register of Historic Places, as 

determined by the Maine Historic Preservation Commission.  
3. Properties located within a National Register Historic District, deemed to be 

contributing resources by the Maine Historic Preservation Commission. 
4. Properties deemed to be contributing resources of local and regional significance 

by the Town of Brunswick.  
 

B. Noncontributing resources, are all remaining resources not considered to be 
contributing.   

     
216.5 Certificate of Appropriateness 

 
A. A Certificate of Appropriateness is required for any of the following activities in the 

Village Review Zone involving contributing resources or, if visible from a public 
right-of-way, noncontributing resources: 

 
1. Construction of a new structure. 
2. Addition to an existing structure.  
3. Alteration to the exterior appearance of any structure with the exception of in-

kind replacement of windows, facades and building ornamentation, normal 
maintenance and painting.  This includes, but is not limited to, any construction 
requiring a building permit, the construction of fences, changes in windows or 
façade materials, or the elimination or addition of any ornamentation.   

4. Relocation of any structure, or portions thereof.  
5. Demolition of any structure or portions thereof.  
6. Construction, installation or alteration of any sign, with the exception of 

directional signage less than three square feet in size. 



79 
 

 
B. The power to grant a Certificate of Appropriateness for new construction, additions, 

alterations, relocations and demolitions under this Section is vested in the Village 
Review Board; however that power is hereby delegated in accordance with the 
following provisions:  

 
1. The Director of Planning and Development shall have the power to grant a 

Certificate of Appropriateness in cases where, in her/his judgment, the impact of 
the proposed activities will be minor, as defined in Section 216.8(B)(1) herein,, 
and in keeping with the review standards of the Ordinance. 

2. The Director of Planning and Development shall regularly apprise the Village 
Review Board of Certificates of Appropriateness granted in accordance with 
subparagraph 1. 

3. Notwithstanding the authority delegated to the Director of Planning and 
Development, the applicant and the Village Review Board Chair each has the 
right to require review of an application by the Village Review Board. 

4. The Director of Planning and Development may find proposed changes to an 
approved Certificate of Appropriateness to be a minor modification, in which 
case approval by the Village Review Board shall not be required. 

  
C. If a structure or property has been damaged by fire, flood, storm or other disaster, 

and emergency temporary repairs or partial demolition are required in order to 
protect health or safety, or to prevent further damage to the structure or property, the 
Codes Enforcement Officer may waive temporarily the requirements of this Section 
for a Certificate of Appropriateness and issue a building permit for such emergency 
temporary repairs, including partial demolition.  No later than 30 days after the 
issuance of the permit, the permit applicant must apply for a Certificate of 
Appropriateness for the repairs or demolition already made and/or any planned 
permanent repairs or additional demolition work that requires a Certificate of 
Appropriateness under Section 216.5. A. 

 
216.6 Limitation on Granting of Other Permits 

 
  No building permit or final development review approval may be issued until a Certificate of 

Appropriateness is granted.  Where an application requires both a Certificate of 
Appropriateness and Development Review, the applications may be concurrently reviewed. 
However, the Final Development Review application shall not be acted on until a decision 
regarding the Certificate of Appropriateness is rendered.  If the application for a Certificate of 
Appropriateness is denied, the application for a building permit or for Development Review 
shall be denied.  If the Certificate of Appropriateness is granted with conditions, those 
conditions shall be added to the Development Review approval.  

 
216.7 Application for Certificate of Appropriateness 

 
Application forms for a Certificate of Appropriateness shall be made available in hard copy or 
online by the Department of Planning and Development.  Completed applications shall be 
submitted to the Department staff with the following information provided: 
  
A. Name, address and interest in the property. 

 
B. Location and nature of the proposed activity. 

 
C. A brief description of the proposed construction, reconstruction, alteration, 

relocation or demolition and proposed reuse..  The description shall include the 



80 
 

reason for the request, and must demonstrate how the proposal is in compliance with 
Section 216.9. 

 
D. Drawings illustrating the design, texture, and location of any construction, alteration, 

or demolition/relocation for which a certificate is required.  The drawings shall 
include plans and exterior elevations drawn to scale, with sufficient detail to show 
their relation to exterior appearances and the architectural design of the building.  
Proposed materials and textures shall be described, including samples where 
appropriate.  Drawings need not be prepared by an architect or engineer, but shall be 
clear, complete, and specific. 

 
E. Photographs of the building(s) involved and of immediately adjacent properties.  

Staff shall provide completed historic building/structure survey forms if available for 
the structure.  For demolition or relocation applications, interior and exterior 
photographs shall be provided clearly indicating the existing condition of the 
structure and, if available, the structural condition at the time of purchase by the 
applicant.  

 
F. A site plan showing the relationship of proposed changes to walks, driveways, signs, 

lighting, landscaping, and adjacent properties, if applicable. For relocation or 
demolition applications, provide post-demolition plans, including a site plan for the 
property specifying site improvements and a timetable for completion.    

 
G. The reviewing entity may grant a waiver of submission requirements if it finds the 

submission of that information is not relevant to a determination. 
 

H. Application fee. 
 
  

216.8 Application Review Process 
 

A. All applicants are encouraged to consult with Department of Planning and 
Development staff prior to submitting an application for a Certificate of 
Appropriateness at which time a determination can be made as to the level of review 
required.  During consultation, Department staff shall provide appropriate guidance 
and available resources, including the Village Review Zone Design Guidelines, to 
the applicant. 
 

B. Within four days of an application being submitted to the Department of Planning 
and Development, staff shall make a determination regarding completeness.   If 
incomplete, staff will notify the applicant of deficiencies.  If complete, staff will 
process the application as either a minor or major application as follows:   

 
1. Minor Activities (staff-level review)  

 
a. Activities shall include:   

   
1) Any alterations or additions not visible from a public right-of-way; 
2) Replacement of existing exterior siding or other materials, windows or 

doors which do not alter architectural or historic character;   
3) Repair, replacement or re-pointing of exterior masonry walls which do 

not alter architectural or historic character; 
4) Placement of sheds or other outbuildings, fences or dumpsters located 

in rear yards not visible from a public right-of-way; 



81 
 

5) Any demolitions, partial demolitions or relocations of noncontributing 
resources not visible from a public right-of-way. 

6) Roof-top appurtenances not visible from a public-right-of-way; and, 
7) Removal of non-historic elements concealing original architectural 

character-defining features. 
 

b. Minor Applications for Certificate of Appropriateness shall be submitted to 
the Department of Planning and Development staff.   
1) Staff shall review and either render a decision to the applicant or 

forward to the Village Review Board for their consideration within ten 
days of determining the application complete.   

2) The Village Review Board may conduct a review of a minor 
application at the recommendation of either the Director of Planning 
and Development or Board Chair.   

3) A person with standing may appeal the decision by staff to the Village 
Review Board by submitting an appeal application to the Director of 
Planning and Development within 30 days of the date of the action.  
The Village Review Board may hold a public hearing and shall render 
its decision following the review procedure set forth in Section 
216.8.B.2.b. 
 

2. Major Activities (Village Review Board-level review) 
 
a. Activities shall include: 

 
1) Any alterations or additions to existing structures or new construction 

visible from a public right-of-way; 
2) Any roof-top appurtenances visible from a public right-of-way; 
3) Exterior renovations, alterations or modifications to the structure or site 

not determined to be minor in nature; 
4) Any demolitions, partial demolitions or relocations of either 

contributing resources or noncontributing resources visible from a 
public right-of-way.  The independent demolition of incidental 
noncontributing structures accessory to a contributing resource are 
exempt from review; and.  

5) Any alterations or new placement of walks, driveways or new 
impervious surfaces associated with any of the above major activities. 
 

 
b. Major Applications for Certificate of Appropriateness shall be submitted to 

the Department of Planning and Development staff no less than fourteen 
days from the date of the Village Review Board’s meeting in which it will 
be discussed.   
 

   1)  The Town shall provide notification to all property owners within a 
200-foot radius of the boundaries of the property under review in the 
proposed application, giving a general description of the activity and 
specifying its location.  Notifications shall be distributed by first class 
mail at least 10 days prior to a scheduled review, stipulating the time 
and place of the Board's meeting.   The Board may also schedule a 
publicly noticed site visit of the subject property prior to their meeting. 

 2) Within 30 days of the Town’s receipt of a complete application, the 
Village Review Board shall hold a public meeting and make a 
determination as to the completeness of the application. Once the Board 



82 
 

determines that the application is complete, it shall review the 
application.  After completing its review, the Board shall vote to deny, 
approve or approve the application with conditions. The Village 
Review Board shall set forth the reason or reasons for its decision and 
make findings of fact, in writing, sufficient to apprise the applicant and 
any interested member of the public of the basis for the decision. The 
date of approval, denial, or approval with conditions shall be the date 
that the Board votes on an application for a Certificate of Approval.   

 3) A written notice of the determination of the Village Review Board, 
including findings of fact and Certificate of Appropriateness, shall be 
sent by regular mail to the applicant and to the Planning Board within 
10 days of the Village Review Board's determination. 

 4) The Village Review Board, by a majority vote, may request an 
independent peer review of the application or portion thereof at their 
discretion.  All costs associated with the peer review shall be borne by 
the applicant.  Peer review shall not be undertaken unless it is necessary 
for an informed review of the submitted materials and at a reasonable 
cost.  Estimated costs for the peer review shall be disclosed to the 
applicant prior to undertaking such review. The Town shall require an 
applicant to deposit funds into an escrow account to be held for the 
purpose of reimbursing peer review costs.  The applicant shall be 
entitled to an accounting of the use of all funds, as well as to a refund 
of all funds not expended upon final approval, denial or withdrawal of 
an application.  

 
c. Additional Processing Requirements for Relocation or Demolition 

Activities: 
 

1) In addition to the above, additional processing requirements for 
Certificate of Appropriateness applications for demolition or relocation 
of a contributing, as well as   noncontributing resources visible from 
public right-of-way shall be as follows: 

    
a) General 
 

i. A permit for demolition or relocation of a contributing 
resource, a noncontributing resource visible from a public 
right-of-way or portions thereof, within the Village Review 
Zone shall not be issued unless a Certificate of 
Appropriateness has been approved.   No exterior demolition 
work and interior demolition work rendering the structure 
uninhabitable, or relocation of the resource may commence 
until the expiration of the 30-day decision appeal period or, if 
an appeal is taken, upon final disposition of the appeal.. 
 

a) Review Process 
 

i. Applications to demolish or relocate contributing resources 
individually listed on the National Register of Historic Places 
or deemed eligible by the Maine Historic Preservation 
Commission, and contributing resources located within a 
National Register-listed Historic District must adhere to a 90-
day delay period.  The Village Review Board may impose a 
90-day delay period for contributing resources of local and 



83 
 

regional significance.  Such 90-day delay period shall 
commence when application is deemed complete by the 
Village Review Board.  
 

ii. During the 90-day delay period, the applicant shall: 
 
1. Consult with Village Review Board and Maine 

Preservation in seeking alternatives to demolition, 
including the reuse and/or relocation of the resource. 

2. Consult with and notify other related organizations of 
intent to demolish the contributing resource, as identified 
during consultations with Village Review Board and 
Maine Preservation. 

3. Document “good faith” efforts in seeking an alternative, 
including relocation and/or reuse, resulting in the 
preservation of the resource.  Such efforts shall include 
posting a visible sign on the property, listing the property 
for sale and/or relocation, and publishing a notice of 
availability in a general circulation local newspaper. The 
notice of the proposed demolition shall be forwarded to 
the Pejepscot Historical Society, the Town Council, the 
Planning Board  

4. Thoroughly photo or video document the resource and 
provide photo/video and written documentation to the 
Town and Pejepscot Historical Society.  Any significant 
architectural features shall be salvaged, reused and/or 
preserved as appropriate. 

5.  Provide post-demolition plans, including a site plan for 
the property specifying site improvements and a timetable 
for completion. 

 
iii. If at the end of the 90-day period, no satisfactory alternative 

has been found, the Village Review Board shall either grant or 
deny a Certificate of Appropriateness to demolish or relocate 
the resource, applying the criteria set forth in Section 
216.9(B).     

 
2) Noncontributing Resources.   

 
No Certificate of Appropriateness is required if the proposed 
demolition is not visible from the public right-of-way.  

  
216.9 Review Standards  

 
A. General Standard. 

 
1. All Certificates of Appropriateness for new construction, additions, alterations, 

relocations or demolition shall be in accordance with applicable requirements of 
this Ordinance.  In meeting the standards of this Ordinance the applicant may 
obtain additional guidance from  the U.S. Secretary of Interior's Standards for 
Rehabilitating Historic Buildings and the Village Review Zone Design 
Guidelines.  

 
B. New Construction, Additions and Alterations to Existing Structures.  

 

 



84 
 

1. In approving applications for a Certificate of Appropriateness for new 
construction, additions or  alterations to contributing resources, the reviewing 
entity shall make findings that the following standards have been satisfied: 
 
a. Any additions or alterations shall be designed in a manner to minimize the 

overall effect on the historic integrity of the contributing resource.   
b. Alterations shall remain visually compatible with the existing streetscape. 
c. Concealing of distinctive historic or architectural character-defining 

features is prohibited.  If needed, the applicant may replace any significant 
features with in-kind replacement and/or accurate reproductions. 

d. New construction or additions shall be visually compatible with existing 
mass, scale and materials of the surrounding contributing resources. 

e. When constructing additions, the applicant shall maintain the structural 
integrity of existing structures.  

f. For new construction of or additions to commercial, multi-family and other 
non-residential uses the following additional standards shall apply: 

 
1) Parking lots shall be prohibited in side and front yards, except if the 

application involves the renovation of existing structures where such a 
configuration currently exists.  In cases where such parking 
configurations exist, the parking area shall be screened from the public 
right-of-way with landscaping or fencing. 

2) Site plans shall identify pedestrian ways and connections from parking 
areas to public rights-of-way.   

3) All dumpsters and mechanical equipment shall be located no less than 
25 feet away from a public right-of-way and shall be screened from 
public view. 

4) 4) Roof-top-mounted heating, ventilation, air conditioning and energy 
producing equipment shall be screened from the view of any public 
right-of-way or incorporated into the structural design to the extent that 
either method does not impede functionality.  Parapets, projecting 
cornices, awnings or decorative roof hangs are encouraged.  Flat roofs 
without cornices are prohibited. 

5) Building Materials: 
 
a) The use of cinder-block, concrete and concrete block is prohibited 

on any portion of a structure that is visible from the building's 
exterior, with the exception of use in the building's foundation. 

b) The use of vinyl, aluminum or other non-wood siding is permitted 
as illustrated in the Village Review Board Design Guidelines.  
Asphalt and asbestos siding are prohibited. 

c) Buildings with advertising icon images built into their design 
("trademark buildings") are prohibited. 
 

6) No building on Maine Street shall have a horizontal expanse of more 
than 40 feet without a pedestrian entry. 

7) No building on Maine Street shall have more than 15 feet horizontally 
of windowless wall. 

8) All new buildings and additions on Maine Street: 
 
a) Must be built to the front property line. This may be waived if at 

least 60% of the building's front facade is on the property line, and 
the area in front of the setback is developed as a pedestrian space. 

b) If adding more than 50% new floor area to a structure, the addition 



85 
 

shall be at least two stories high and not less than 20 feet tall at the 
front property line.   

c) The first floor facade of any portion of a building that is visible 
from Maine Street shall include a minimum of 50% glass.  Upper 
floors shall have a higher percentage of solid wall, between 15% 
and 40% glass. 
 
 

2. Proposed additions or alterations to noncontributing resources shall be designed 
to enhance or improve the structure’s compatibility with nearby contributing 
resources as compared to the existing noncontribituing resources.  

 
C. Signs 

 
Signs shall comply with the requirements of Chapter 6 (Sign Regulations) with 
consideration given to the Village Review Zone Design Guidelines. 

 
D. Demolition and Relocation 

 
1. Demolition or partial demolition or relocation of a contributing or, if visible 

from a public right-of-way, a noncontributing resource, excluding  incidental or 
noncontributing accessory buildings and structures located on the same property, 
shall be prohibited unless the application satisfies at least one of the following 
criteria: 
 
a. The structure poses an imminent threat to public health or safety. An 

application must be accompanied by a report from a qualified structural 
engineer for review by the Town Code Enforcement Officer and 
photographs depicting the current condition of the building.  

b. The condition of the structure is such that it cannot be adapted for any other 
permitted use, whether by the current owner or by a purchaser, resulting in a 
reasonable economic return, regardless of whether that return represents the 
most profitable return possible, provided that the applicant can document 
he/she has not contributed significantly to the deterioration of the structure.   
An opinion shall be provided from an architect, licensed engineer, 
developer, real estate consultant or appraiser or from a  professional 
experienced in historic rehabilitation, as to the economic feasibility for 
restoration, renovation, or rehabilitation of the contributing resource versus 
demolition or relocation of same.   

c. The proposed replacement structure or reuse of the property is deemed to be 
as appropriate and compatible with the existing streetscape and surrounding 
contributing resources. 

 
2. Demolition, partial demolition or relocation of a noncontributing resource 

visible from a public right-of-way, shall be approved by the Village Review 
Board if it is determined that the proposed replacement structure or reuse of the 
property is deemed more appropriate and compatible with the surrounding 
contributing resources than the resource proposed for demolition.  

 
216.10 Appeal to Zoning Board of Appeals  

   
A. A person with standing may appeal a decision by the Village Review Board, to the 

Zoning Board of Appeals within 30 days of the date of such decision pursuant to 
Sections 703.4 and 703.5 herein. 



86 
 

 
216.11              Expiration of Certificate of Appropriateness 
 

If two years after issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness, the approved work is 
not found to be complete by the Codes Enforcement Officer, the approval shall lapse.  
The applicant may, at any time before the date of approval expiration, make a written 
request to the Village Review Board for an approval time extension.  This request 
shall explain the reasons why the improvements have not been completed and 
indicate how the applicant expects to complete the project if the Board grants an 
extension.  The Board may consider any changes to the Zoning Ordinance or any 
other new information relevant to the application when considering an extension 
request.   
 

216.12             Definitions 
 
  Definitions specific to this Section are as follows: 

 
Character-Defining Feature:  The form, material and detail of those architectural features 
important in defining a building’s historic character and whose retention will preserve that 
character.  Such features include, but not limited to, facades, roofs, porches, windows, doors, 
trim, massing, scale, orientation and landscape features, such as fences, walls, posts and 
walkways. 
 
Compatibility:  Possessing characteristics that are predominant in nature to character-
defining features of structures within a neighborhood as described in the Village Review Zone 
Design Guidelines.  Compatibility does not mean “the same as.”  Rather, compatibility refers 
to the sensitivity of alterations or development proposals in maintaining the character of the 
existing neighborhood.   
 
Contributing Resource:  A building, site, structure, or object that adds to the historic 
association, historic architectural quality, or archeological   values for which a property is 
significant because it was present during the period of significance, relates to the documented 
significance of the property, and possesses historic integrity, or is capable of yielding 
important information about the period; or it independently meets the National Register 
criteria.  
 
Contributing Resource of Local or Regional Significance:  A building, site, structure, or 
object over 50 years of age identified in Appendix ____ as having local or regional 
significance based on Town-established criteria as follows: 

1. Its value as a significant example of the cultural, historic, architectural, 
archeological, or related aspect of local or regional heritage; 

2. Its location as a site of significant historic or prehistoric event or activity which 
may have taken place within or which involved the use of any existing structure 
on the property. 

3.  Its identification with a person or persons who significantly contributed to the 
cultural, historic, architectural, archeological, or related aspect to local or 
regional heritage. 

4. Its exemplification of a significant architectural type, style, or design 
distinguished by innovation, rarity, uniqueness, or overall quality of design, 
detail, materials and artisanship. 

5. Its identification as the work of an architect, designer, engineer, or builder 
whose individual work is significant in local or regional history or development. 

6. Its representation of a significant cultural, historic, architectural, archeological, 
or theme expressed through distinctive areas, sites, structures, objects, or 
artifacts that may or may not be contiguous.  

 



87 
 

 
Historic District:  A geographic area federally designated as an historic district and listed on 
the National Register of Historic Places.   
 
Historic Integrity:  The authenticity of a property’s historic identity as evidenced by the 
survival of physical characteristics (location, design, setting, materials, workmanship and 
association) that existed during the property’s prehistoric or historic period. 
 
In-Kind Replacement:  Replacement of a feature with new materials that identically matches 
the original with respect to design, size, configuration, texture and other visual qualities. 
 
Noncontributing Resource:  A building, structure, or object that does not add to the historic 
sense of time and place or historic development; or one where the location, design, setting, 
materials, workmanship or association have been so altered or have so deteriorated that the 
overall integrity has been irretrievably lost.   
 
 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards:  The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the 
Treatment of Historic Properties with Guidelines for Preserving, Rehabilitating, restoring 
and Reconstructing Historic Buildings (36 CFR Part 68 in the July 12, 1995 Federal Register 
or most recent edition), are the national standards to guide work undertaken on historic 
properties.  The intent of the Standards is to assist in the long-term preservation of historic 
structures and features.  The Standards are used to evaluate rehabilitation projects on certified 
historic structures for federal tax credits. 
 
Streetscape:  The public setting in which a structure, site or landmark is located.  It is the 
immediate visible neighborhood of the public right-of-way or public land associated with 
such a structure, including such features as fences, sidewalks and lights. 



/

Village Review Zone
Expansion Alternatives 0 1,500750

Feet

VRZ Proposed Expansion
Village Review Zone
Expansion Area Reviewed by Board Based on Comp Plan Content (To Page St)
Expansion Area Based on Council's Motion to Adopt 2008 Comp Plan  (To Potter St)



 
 

 
ITEM 62 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 





 

  

Public Benefit Conveyances  
Properties conveyed to the Town of Brunswick from 

Brunswick Naval Air Station (BNAS)  

RECREATION, TRAILS & OPEN 
SPACE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Town of Brunswick, Maine 
June 2013 



 Executive Summary 
The Recreation, Trails and Open Space Management 
Plan document shall guide the management of the 
Town of Brunswick public benefit conveyance lands, 
public access and open space properties which shall 
be managed for the purposes of recreation, trails and 
open space conservation.  The properties within this 
management plan include land acquired by / 
conveyed to the Town as surplus federal property 
following the closure of the Brunswick Naval Air 
Station (BNAS).  In assuming responsibility for the 
conveyance lands, the Town is responsible for the establishment of management plans and the 
stewardship for each of the parcels formerly associated with BNAS.   

A stakeholders group was formed including representatives from the Town of Brunswick staff, council, 
and committees, as well as from MRRA and Bowdoin College, both also in receipt of BNAS surplus 
properties.  The Town of Brunswick, Bowdoin College, and MRRA were all also involved in the 
development of the BNAS Reuse Master Plan.  With the common interest of ensuring the appropriate 
use and management of the former BNAS properties, the charge of the group was to help the Town 
develop this set of management plans with an emphasis on recreation and conservation of natural and 
cultural/historic resources. 

Within this management plan, several parcels have been inventoried and assessed individually to 
determine appropriate level of use and access, the recreational opportunities, and the appropriate 
protection of ecological and cultural resources.  The public benefit conveyance lands together offer a 
range of experiences and community benefits, and this management plan seeks to both maximize the 
community benefits and protect important resources through the establishment of the overarching 
management goals and the management plans for the individual parcels. 

Cultural & Historic Context.  The former BNAS properties have a cultural history that pre-dates the 
establishment of the naval facility during WWII.  Dating back to early native inhabitants, archaeological 
evidence indicates the land was used as hunting and gathering grounds.  Early European settlement 
records indicate the establishment of four homesteads by 1739, with evidence of the later development 
of the area also supporting small mills, marine clay harvesting and other natural resource based 
activities, as well as some civic uses. 

Ecological Context.  The natural and ecological values of the former BNAS properties are quite 
significant, despite what might be thought of as intensive use over the past 70 years.  At the landscape 
level, the land is part of a significant block of unfragmented forest, and features the stream system and 
tidal marshes of Mere Brook as a significant ecological feature.  The predominantly silt and find sand 
soils over marine clay support a range of vegetation types and natural communities in the unbuilt areas 
of the property, dominated by Oak-Pine Forest.  The Lowbush Blueberry Sandplain Grasslands is the 



most notable natural community (including the East Brunswick Transmitter Site), which is listed as 
critically imperiled in Maine.  Other notable natural communities include remnants of the Pitch Pine 
Heath Barren forest community type (critically imperiled), and areas of the rare Freshwater Tidal Marsh. 

The properties also support a number of rare, threatened, or endangered plant and animal species, as 
well as some state-identified, high value wildlife habitats, including waterfowl and wading bird habitats 
and deer wintering areas.   

Overall, the management and stewardship of the conveyance lands must have a significant focus on 
protecting the high value natural communities and plant and animal species, and must also be sensitive 
to known cultural and historic resources.  The development of recreational and trails uses will continue 
to be strongly influenced by the overall management goals of protecting cultural and natural resources. 

Kate Furbish Preserve 

The recreational use for the Kate Furbish Preserve, the largest of the Town’s open space properties from 
the conveyance, has been determined to be primarily passive, including a system of walking and shared-
use trails; winter use for non-motorized recreation; access for hunting, fishing, clamming, etc.; 
opportunities for educational signage or amenities; and modest parking to serve trailheads.  These uses 
will provide tremendous community benefit, while balancing the need for protecting significant 
ecological and cultural values.  The Kate Furbish Preserve is not intended for motorized vehicles other 
than for emergency or maintenance, will not allow camping, and will be open from one hour before 
dawn until a half hour after dusk.  Much of the chain link fencing will be removed over time, to improve 
wildlife habitat connectivity and in some cases trail connectivity. 

Perimeter Trail System 

A conceptual plan has been developed to create a trail around the perimeter of the entire contiguous 
land of the former BNAS property.  This trail would be developed on Town of Brunswick, Bowdoin 
College, and MRRA properties, created using both some of the existing perimeter road from the former 
BNAS facilities as well as some new trail segments.  The perimeter trail would connect to the trail system 
of the Kate Furbish Preserve at the southern end, and in the long term could have connections to other 
trails in the area such as the Bike Trail and trails of the Town Common on Harpswell Road.  Trails must 
be developed in phases, with cooperation from the three major property owners and other community 
abutters. 

 

 



 
 

 
ITEM 63 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 















 
 

 
ITEM 64 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



To:  Brunswick Town Council 

From: Councilor Watson, Chair Appointments Committee 

Date:  05/25/2013 

On the evenings of 05/14/2013  the Appointments’ Committee met to interview applicants for six (6) committees 
(Boards/Commissions).    

 

At this time the Committee would like to recommend for appointment the following: 

To the Conservation Commission: The Committee interviewed four persons for three positions and recommend for 
appointment. 

Jason Coombs (Reappointment)     Amanda Mahaffey (Reappointment)  Thomas Rumpf (New Appointment) 

To the Cable Television Committee: The Committee interviewed one person for reappointment and recommend. 

Charlie Priest 

To the Marine Resource Committee: The Committee interviewed one person for reappointment and recommend 

Frederick Wigand 

To the Recycling Committee: The Committee interviewed two person for reappointment and recommend 

Holly Greens  Sarah Wolpow 

To the Zoning Board of Appeals: The Committee interviewed one person for reappointment and recommend 

Sande Updegraph 

To the Bicycle and Pedestrian Adv. Committee: The Committee interviewed two persons for one position.  The 
Committee is not bringing forward recommendation at this time as there is one person still to interview. 



Summary of Received Applications 5/14/2013
Date of Application

Bicycle & Pedestrian Adv. Comm.

BloodJohn 116 Woodside Rd  725-1274 5/1/2013

Will this be a reappointment no MembershipType: Interview Time: May 15, 2013 at 8:00 p.m.

DavisMichael 7 Federal Street  837-8728 5/1/2013

Will this be a reappointment No MembershipType: Interview Time: May 15, 2013 at 7:45 p.m.

WilsonKatherine 144 Pleasant Street  725-0179 5/1/2013

Will this be a reappointment No MembershipType: Interview Time: May 15, 2013 at 7:30 p.m.

Cable Television Committee

PriestCharles 9 Bowker St.  725-5439 4/4/2013

Will this be a reappointment yes MembershipType: Interview Time: May 15, 2013 at 7:00 p.m.

Conservation Commission

CoombsJason 16 Growling Bear Dr  837-7080 4/8/2013

Will this be a reappointment yes MembershipType: Interview Time: May 15, 2013 at 7:15 p.m.

MahaffeyAmanda 101 Union Street  449-3070 4/15/2013

Will this be a reappointment Yes MembershipType: Interview Time: April 17, 2013 at 7:00 p.m.

RumpfThomas 34 Belmont St.  725-1249 4/16/2013

Will this be a reappointment No MembershipType: Interview Time: April 17, 2013 at 7:45 p.m.

SaucierPaul 44 Chamberlain Avenue  725-7103 3/14/2013

Will this be a reappointment No MembershipType: Interview Time: April 17, 2013 at 6:00 p.m.

Tuesday, May 14, 2013 Page 1 of 2



Date of Application

Marine Resource Committee

WigandFrederick 12 Larrabee Farm  729-0363 3/15/2013

Will this be a reappointment yes MembershipType: RRSH Interview Time: May 15, 2013 at 6:15 p.m.

Recycling & Sustainability Committee

GreeneHolly 202 Church Road  751-8445 3/29/2013

Will this be a reappointment yes MembershipType: Interview Time: May 15, 2013 at 6:30 p.m.

WolpowSarah 45 Page St.  721-0941 5/1/2013

Will this be a reappointment Yes MembershipType: Interview Time: May 15, 2013 at 6:00 p.m.

Zoning Board of Appeals

UpdegraphSande 724 Durham Rd  725-1345 5/1/2013

Will this be a reappointment Yes MembershipType: Full Interview Time: May 15, 2013 at 6:45 p.m.

Tuesday, May 14, 2013 Page 2 of 2



 
 
O:\Word\Boards-fran\AdvertisementsforBoards\13-May June app comm vacancy listB.docx 5/14/2013 

BRUNSWICK BOARDS AND COMMITTEE OPENINGS 
The Brunswick Town Council will be holding interviews on Wednesday, May 15, 2013, to the following Boards 
and/or Committees vacancies listed below.  Interested citizens should complete an application form, available in the 
Town Clerk's Office.  Please return applications to the Town Clerk's Office by 4:30 P.M. on Tuesday, May 14, 2013.  
The next deadline for an application will be June 17th. 
 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee 
 1 member – no set term 
 
Cable TV 
 1 member – 3 year term to expire on 09/06/2015 
 
Conservation Commission 
 1 member – balance of 3 year term to expire on 05/01/2014 
 2 members – 3 year terms to expire on 05/01/2016 
 
Fair Hearing Authority  
 3 members – 2 year terms to expire on 10/01/2014 
 
Marine Resource Committee 
 1 Alternative (Commercial Harvester) – 3 year term to expire on 05/01/2014 
 1 Alternate (no license holder) – 3 year term to expire on 05/01/2016 
 1 member (Recreation license holder) – 3 year term to expire on 05/01/2015 
 1 member (Commercial Harvesters) – 3 year terms to expire on 05/01/2016 

1 member (no license holder) – 3 year term to expire on 05/01/2016 
 
Personnel Board 
 1 full member – balance of 3 year term to expire on 01/12/2015 
 
Recreation Commission 
 2 members – balance of 3 year terms to expire on 07/01/2015 
 
Recycling & Sustainability Committee 

2 members – 3 year term to expire on 01/12/2016 
1 member – balance of 3 year term to expire on 01/12/2015 

 
Sewer District Board of Trustees 
 1 full member – 3 year term to expire on 04/01/2016 
 
Trust Fund Advisory Committee 
 1 member – 3 year term to expire on 05/10/2015 
 
Village Review Board 
 2 full members – balance of 3 year terms to expire on 10/20/2015 
 1 member – balance of 3 year term to expire on 10/20/2013 
 
Zoning Board of Appeals  
 1 associate member – 3 year term to expire on 07/01/2015 

2 full members - 3 year terms to expire on 11/20/2015 
 

  















































 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
May 20, 2013 

7:00 P.M. – Regular Meeting 
Municipal Meeting Room 

Brunswick Station 
16 Station Avenue 

 
Councilors Present: Chair Suzan Wilson, W. David Watson, Benjamin J. Tucker, John M. 

Perreault, Gerald E. Favreau, Margo H. Knight, Sarah E. Brayman, John 
Richardson, Jr., and Benet Pols 

 
Councilors Absent: None 
 
Town Staff Present: Gary Brown, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk/Assistant to the 

Town Manager; John Eldridge, Finance Director; Tom Farrell, Director of 
Parks and Recreation Department; Troy Smith, Deputy Director of Parks 
and Recreation Department; Marc Hagan, Deputy Police Chief; Peter 
Baecher, Facility Director for Parks and Recreation Department; Pat 
Maher, Police Officer; and TV video crew 

 
Chair Wilson called the meeting to order, asked for the Pledge of Allegiance, and asked the 
Town Clerk for Roll Call.  
 
Public Comment:  
 
Tasha Connors, Memorial Day Parade Committee, spoke regarding the upcoming parade. 
 
Jane Millet, 10 Franklin Street, spoke regarding process and a lack of transparency.  She also 
spoke about costs related to the McLellan building and Longfellow School exchange. 
 
Leon Thayer, Mere Point Road, spoke regarding the College Street project. 
 
Correspondence:   
 
Councilor Perreault updated the Council on 77 Pleasant Street, which is under new ownership.  
He also spoke on an upcoming meeting regarding the black bridge. 
 
Councilor Brayman said Crystal Spring Farms has been named the best farmer’s market in 
Maine. 
 
Councilor Richardson made a correction to comments he made previously regarding his vote on 
Building 211 when on he was on the LRA. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
May 20, 2013 
Page 2 
 

 
 

Councilor Favreau wanted his constituents to know that when they contact him he replies by 
phone, he does not reply by email. 
 
Councilor Tucker gave a legislative update about Representative Daughtry’s bill, which was 
heard last week, with the Committee voting ought not to pass, based on opposition from Senator 
Gerzofsky and Representative Priest.  It will be going to the floor for a vote. 
 
Adjustments to the Agenda:  None 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
(a) Council Committee Updates 
 
Updates were given on the following Committees: Recreation, Trails and Open Space 
Management Committee; MMA Legislative Policy Committee; and Recycling and Sustainability 
Committee. 
 
(b) Approval of Nathaniel Davis Fund Committee recommendations (Action Required) 
 
Dan Doiron, 20 Cushnoc Lane and Committee member, spoke regarding this item and 
responded to questions from Councilor Pols. 
 
Councilor Perreault and Councilor Favreau spoke on this item. 
 
Councilor Knight moved, Councilor Pols seconded, to accept the recommendations for the 
Davis Fund’s 2012-2013 allocations as recommended by the Committee.  The motion 
carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the Committee’s minutes, with their recommendations, will be attached to the official 
minutes.). 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
50. The Town Council will consider adopting “A Resolution Authorizing the Town 

Manager to Sign a Purchase and Sale Agreement for Property at 30 Federal Street,” 
and will take any appropriate action. (Chair Wilson, Councilor Watson, Councilor 
Tucker, Councilor Favreau, and Councilor Knight) 

 
Councilor Knight spoke regarding this item. 
 
Chair Wilson read a statement from Larissa Darcy, President of the Brunswick Development 
Corporation.   
 
(A copy of the email from Ms. Darcy will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 



Town Council Minutes 
May 20, 2013 
Page 3 
 

 
 

Chair Wilson opened the floor for public comments. 
 
The following people spoke regarding this item: 
 
Fred Horch, 44 Pleasant Street  
Connie Lundquist, 11 Longfellow Avenue 
Sarah Singer, 17 Thompson Street 
Jane Millet, Franklin Street 
Kathleen Funderburk, 18 High Street 
Louise Rosen, 16 High Street 
Ted Laitala, 9 Federal Street 
Karen Corey, 9 Glover Street and Recreation Commission member 
Marybeth Burbank, 11 Cumberland Street 
Jackie Sartoris, Bowdoin Street 
Claudia Knox, 36 Cumberland Street 
Kate Kalajainen, 30 Palmer Street 
Scott Taylor, 11 High Street 
Cory Theberge, 13 Federal Street 
Jason Coombs, 16 Growling Bear Drive 
Allison Harris, 38 Cumberland Street 
Tammy Dostie-Gray, 8 Laurel Road 
Laura Leinert, 10 High Street 
Art Boulay, 32 Federal Street 
 
Chair Wilson closed the floor to public comments. 
 
Manager Brown and Tom Farrell responded to questions from the public and Council. 
 
Councilor Pols, Councilor Favreau, Councilor Knight, Councilor Pols, Councilor Brayman 
Councilor Watson, Councilor Richardson, and Councilor Perreault commented on this item. 
 
Councilor Knight moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to adopt “A Resolution 
Authorizing the Town Manager to Sign a Purchase and Sale Agreement for Property at 30 
Federal Street.”  The motion carried with seven (7) yeas.  Councilor Perreault and 
Councilor Brayman were opposed. 
 
(A copy of the adopted resolution will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
51. The Town Council will consider adopting the “Resolution Regarding Proposed State 

Budget Cuts Affecting Revenues to Towns,” and will take any appropriate action. 
(Councilor Richardson) 

 
Councilor Richardson introduced this item. 
 
Councilor Pols and Councilor Brayman spoke regarding this item. 



Town Council Minutes 
May 20, 2013 
Page 4 
 

 
 

 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor Pols seconded, to adopt the “Resolution 
Regarding Proposed State Budget Cuts Affecting Revenues to Towns.”  The motion carried 
with nine (9) yeas. 

 
(A copy of the adopted resolution will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
52. The Town Council will consider adopting “A Resolution Authorizing the 

Establishment of the Brunswick Station Sculpture Fund and Authorizing the 
Acceptance of Contributions to, and Expenditures From, the Fund,” and will take 
any appropriate action. (Councilor Brayman) 
 

Councilor Brayman introduced this item. 
 
John Eldridge, Finance Director, responded to a question from Councilor Favreau. 
 
Councilor Knight spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Brayman moved, Councilor Richardson seconded, to adopt “A Resolution 
Authorizing the Establishment of the Brunswick Station Sculpture Fund and Authorizing 
the Acceptance of Contributions to, and Expenditures From, the Fund.”  The motion 
carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the adopted resolution will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
53. The Town Council will discuss the proposed Town Budget for FY 2013-14, and will 

take any appropriate action.  (Chair Wilson) 
 
Manager Brown spoke regarding this item. 
 
The following members of the public spoke on this item: 
 
Ed Blot, 12 High Street 
Jane Millett, 10 Franklin Street 
Theon Thayer, 297 Mere Point Road 
 
The Council discussed the direction to go with the budget so that resolutions can be prepared for 
budget adoption on May 23, 2013. 
 
Manager Brown responded to questions from the public and from Councilors.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

(a) Approval of the Minutes of May 6, 2013 
(b) Approval of the Minutes of May 9, 2013 

 



Town Council Minutes 
May 20, 2013 
Page 5 
 

 
 

Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Brayman seconded, to approve the Consent 
Agenda.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The 
motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:36 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
 
Frances Smith 
Town Clerk/Assistant to the Town Manager 
May 22, 2013 
 

June 3, 2013 
Date of Approval 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 

 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



-Draft- 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Special Meeting Minutes 
May 23, 2013 

7:00 P.M. 
Municipal Meeting Room 

Brunswick Station 
16 Station Avenue 

 
Councilors Present: Chair Suzan Wilson, W. David Watson, Benjamin J. Tucker, John M. 

Perreault, Gerald E. Favreau, Margo H. Knight, Sarah E. Brayman, John 
Richardson, Jr. and Benet Pols 

 
Councilors Absent: None 
 
Town Staff Present: Gary Brown, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk/Assistant to the 

Town Manager; John Eldridge, Finance Director; Ken Brillant, Fire Chief; 
Tom Farrell, Director of Parks and Recreation Department; Pat Maher, 
Police Officer; and TV video crew 

 
Chair Wilson called the meeting to order, asked for the Pledge of Allegiance, and asked the Town 
Clerk for Roll Call.  
 
Jane Millett, 10 Franklin Street, spoke regarding the budget and increases in town facilities. 
 
NEW BUSINESS ITEMS:  
 
54. The Town Council will consider adopting the 2013-2014 School Budget Articles, and 

will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 
 
Manager Brown and John Eldridge spoke on this item and responded to questions from the 
Council. 
 
ARTICLE 1.  Region Ten Technical High School Budget.   
Councilor Knight moved, Councilor Brayman seconded, to approve the Region Ten 
Technical High School budget as approved by the Cooperative Board of Region Ten in an 
amount not to exceed $1,980,299 with Brunswick’s assessment as part of the total 
appropriation to the Brunswick School Department being an amount not to exceed $708,809 
for operating expenditures and $0 for debt service expenditures.  The motion carried with 
eight (8) yeas.  Councilor Watson was opposed. 
 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor Brayman seconded, to reconsider the vote. The 
motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
Councilor Tucker moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to approve the Region Ten 
Technical High School budget as approved by the Cooperative Board of Region Ten in an 
amount not to exceed $1,980,299 with Brunswick’s assessment as part of the total 
appropriation to the Brunswick School Department being an amount not to exceed $708,809 
for operating expenditures and $0 for debt service expenditures.  The motion carried with 
nine (9) yeas. 



Town Council Minutes 
May 23, 2013 
Page 2 
 

 

 
ARTICLE 2.  Merrymeeting Adult Education Budget.   
Councilor Brayman moved, Councilor Pols seconded, to approve the Merrymeeting Adult 
Education budget in an amount not to exceed $720,885 with Brunswick’s assessment as part 
of the total appropriation to the Brunswick School Department not to exceed $100,486.  The 
motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
K-12 ARTICLES 
ARTICLE 3.  Local Contribution Required under EPS to Receive Full State Dollars; and 
State Subsidy.   
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Brayman seconded, as part of the total 
appropriation to the Brunswick School Department:  To appropriate the sum of 
$26,778,990 toward the total cost of funding public education from kindergarten to grade 12 
as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act; and as part of the 
$26,778,990 to raise the sum of $16,447,486 as the Town’s contribution toward the total cost 
of funding public education from kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential 
Programs and Services Funding Act in accordance with the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 
20-A, section 15688; and as part of the $26,778,990 to accept state subsidy anticipated in the 
amount of $10,331,504. Pending the results of a routine ongoing State Department of 
Education audit of the Harriet Beecher Stowe school construction project, if the anticipated 
state subsidy that would be used for debt service payment is more than the actual state 
subsidy received, other funds remaining from the Harriet Beecher Stowe construction 
project fund will be used for this purpose. The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
Councilor Richardson spoke on this item. 
 
ARTICLE 4.  Non-State-Funded Debt Service.   
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Pols seconded, as part of the total appropriation to 
the Brunswick School Department:  To appropriate the sum of $302,461 and to raise the 
sum of $302,461 for the annual payments on debt service previously approved by the 
legislative body for non-state-funded school construction projects, non-state-funded 
portions of school construction projects in addition to the funds appropriated as the local 
share of the school administrative unit’s contribution to the total cost of funding public 
education from kindergarten to grade 12. Pending the results of a routine ongoing State 
Department of Education audit of the Harriet Beecher Stowe school construction project, 
the School Department is authorized to use funds remaining in the Harriet Beecher Stowe 
construction project fund to pay the non-state-funded school construction debt service for 
to the Harriet Beecher Stowe school construction project.  The motion carried with nine (9) 
yeas. 
 
ARTICLE 5.  Additional Local Funds.   
Councilor Knight moved, Councilor Brayman seconded, as part of the total appropriation 
to the Brunswick School Department:  To raise and appropriate the sum of $4,707,824 in 
additional local funds, which exceeds the State’s Essential Programs and Services allocation 
model by $4,548,460.  The School Board recommends $4,707,824 in additional local funds 
which amount exceeds the State’s Essential Programs and Services allocation model by 
$4,548,460 for the following reasons:  The State’s EPS allocation in Transportation, 



Town Council Minutes 
May 23, 2013 
Page 3 
 

 

Facilities Maintenance, Special Education, Extra-Curricular and Co-Curricular programs 
and instructional staffing are inadequate to fully fund the 2013-14 program approved by 
the school board in the proposed budget.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
ARTICLE 6.  Other Funds.   
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Tucker seconded, as part of the total appropriation 
to the Brunswick School Department:  To accept funds from other sources as estimated 
below and to appropriate the amount of $286,411 
 
Federal School Subsidy    $    0 
Tuition and other charges        166,411 
Miscellaneous         120,000 
        $   286,411 
 
The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
ARTICLE 7.  Unexpended Balances.   
Councilor Tucker moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, as part of the total appropriation 
to the Brunswick School Department:  To appropriate $2,800,000 from the existing, or 
estimated, unexpended balances of the Brunswick School Department. The motion carried 
with nine (9) yeas. 
 
ARTICLE 8.  Kindergarten to Grade 12 total Budget.   
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Brayman seconded, to authorize the Brunswick 
School Department to expend $34,875,685 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2013 and 
ending June 30, 2014 from the school administrative unit’s contribution to the total cost of 
funding public education from kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential 
Programs and Services Funding Act, non-state-funded school construction projects, 
additional local funds for school purposes under the Maine Revised Statutes title 20-A 
section 15690, unexpended balances, tuition receipts, state subsidy, and other receipts for 
the support of schools. The motion carried with seven (7) yeas.  Councilor Watson and 
Councilor Favreau were opposed. 
 
ADULT EDUCATION 

 
ARTICLE 9.  Adult Education.   
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Brayman seconded, as part of the total 
appropriation to the Brunswick School Department:  To appropriate $100,486 for adult 
education and to raise $69,486 as the local share; and to accept state subsidy anticipated in 
the amount of $31,000; with authorization to expend the herein appropriated $100,486 and 
any additional, incidental, or miscellaneous receipts in the interest and for the well-being of 
the adult education program.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
ARTICLE 10.  Food Service.   
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to raise and appropriate the sum 
of $86,000 in additional local dollars in support of the Brunswick School Nutrition 



Town Council Minutes 
May 23, 2013 
Page 4 
 

 

Program, and to authorize expenditure of the herein appropriated $86,000 for the stated 
purpose. The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
ARTICLE 11.  Cost Center Allocation.   
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Brayman seconded, pursuant to 20-A M.R.S.A., to 
authorize allocation of the school budget, $35,062,171 to the various cost centers as 
recommended by the Brunswick School Board May 22, 2013 as follows: 
 
Cost Center Summary   Amount Recommended by  Amount 
Approved by 
Budget Category                       School Board                Town Council 
 
Regular Instruction    $     14,985,129  $   14,985,129  
Special Education    $       4,631,935  $     4,631,935 
Career and Technical Education  $          708,809  $        708,809 
Other Instruction    $          690,645  $        690,645 
Student and staff support   $       3,322,511  $     3,322,511 
System Administration   $          796,689  $        796,689 
School Administration   $       1,374,462  $     1,374,462 
Transportation and Buses   $       1,717,135  $     1,717,135 
Facilities Maintenance   $       3,978,944  $     3,978,944 
Debt Service and Other Commitments $       2,669,426  $     2,669,426 
Other      $                     0                       $                   0 
Total to June 11 Public Referendum $     34,875,685  $   34,875,685 
 
Food Service                  $            86,000  $          86,000 
Adult Education    $ 100,486  $        100,486 
 
Summary of Total Expenditures voted                 
By School Board May 22   $     35,062,171  $   35,062,171 
The motion carried with seven (7) yeas.  Councilor Watson and Councilor Favreau were 
opposed. 
 
ARTICLE 12.  Grants, Donations, and other revenues.   
Councilor Knight moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to authorize the Brunswick School 
Department to make application for grants and other revenues as opportunities may 
become available, to appropriate such revenues to the purpose for which received, and to 
authorize the Brunswick School Department to accept and expend any grant awards, 
donations, or other revenues that may be received. The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the Cost Center and Articles will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
55. The Town Council will consider a warrant for the School Budget Validation 

Referendum to be held on June 11, 2013, and will take any appropriate action. 
(Manager) 

 
Mr. Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 



Town Council Minutes 
May 23, 2013 
Page 5 
 

 

 
Councilor Tucker and Councilor Favreau spoke on this item. 
 
Councilor Brayman, Councilor Watson, and Councilor Perreault asked questions, to which Fran 
Smith, Town Clerk, responded. 
 
Councilor Tucker moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to approve the Election Warrant 
for the School Budget Validation Referendum to be held on June 11, 2013.  The motion 
carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the Election Warrant will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
56. The Town Council will consider adopting the 2013-2014 Budget Resolution for the 

Town, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 
 
Mr. Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Perreault and Councilor Tucker asked questions, to which Manager Brown responded. 
 
Councilor Tucker moved, Councilor Brayman seconded, to adopt the Budget Resolution for 
the July 1, 2013 – June 30, 2014 Fiscal Year.  The motion carried with six (6) yeas.  
Councilor Watson, Councilor Perreault, and Councilor Favreau were opposed. 
 
(A copy of the adopted resolution will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
57. The Town Council will consider adopting the Supplemental Budget Resolution 

Appropriating $465,000 from the Unassigned Fund Balance of the General Fund to 
Fund Capital Acquisitions and Projects, and will take any appropriate action.  
(Manager) 

 
Mr. Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Knight seconded, to adopt the Supplemental Budget 
Resolution Appropriating $465,000 from the Unassigned Fund Balance of the General Fund 
to Fund Capital Acquisitions and Projects.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the adopted resolution will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
58. The Town Council will consider adopting a resolution adopting the Capital 

Improvements Program For the Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2014 - 2018, and will 
take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 

 
Mr. Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Brayman moved, Councilor Pols seconded, to adopt a resolution adopting the 
Capital Improvements Program For the Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2014 – 2018. The 
motion carried with eight (8) yeas.  Councilor Perreault was opposed. 



Town Council Minutes 
May 23, 2013 
Page 6 
 

 

 
(A copy of the adopted resolution will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
59. The Town Council will consider any other matters related to the adoption of the 

2013-2014 Budget and will take any appropriate action. (Manager)  
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Tucker second, to instruct staff to come back to 
Council if state changes reduce revenues, so the Council can determine any budget changes.  
The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Tucker seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The motion 
carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:58 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
 
Frances Smith 
Town Clerk/Assistant to the Town Manager 
May 24, 2013 
 

June 3, 2013 
Date of Approval 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 

 
 


	mr a no
	mr b yes
	mr b Alex Labbe Fund Resoluti_20130529115739
	mr c yes
	mr c Dog Park Opening 5-29-13_20130529115624
	mr d yes
	60 yes
	60 app special_20130529092508
	61 VRZ Proposed Amendment and Memo for TC.pdf
	VRZ memo request for ph jd.pdf
	216Village Review Zone 5 28 13 AB Final for TC CLEAN
	VRZ Boundary Amendment 5 24 13

	part 2.pdf
	62 yes
	62 RTOS Management Plan_TCMemo_05292013
	62 Correct RTOS Management Plan_Executive Summary
	Executive Summary

	63 yes
	63 sidewalk_20130529092605
	64 yes
	64 Bd App Interviews Packet May 2013
	13-May June app comm vacancy listB.pdf
	2013 Wolpow S - Recy
	2013 Wigand F - marine
	2013 Green H - Recy
	2013 Updegraph Zba
	2013, priest c cable tv
	2013, coombs j  conversation commision
	2013 Wilson K - Bike
	2013 Davis M - Bike
	2013 Blood  J

	ca a yes
	ca a may 20 2013 min
	ca b yes
	ca b May 23 2013 budget min

	May 30 memo regarding parks and rec move to building 211.pdf
	TOWN OF BRUNSWICK


